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20 THE NAVE

The Rt Hon. Andrew Bonar Law, MP, b. 1858, d. 1923,
statesman and Prime Minister, Canadian by birth and
Scottish by descent. Law entered Parliament first in 1900;
Leader of the Conservative Opposition (1911-15);
Colonial Secretary in First Coalition Government (1915);
Chancellor of the Exchequer in Lloyd George’s War
Cabinet; Lord Privy Seal (1919-21); Prime Minister,
19223 (resigned).

The Rt Hon (Arthur) Neville Chamberlain, b. 1869, d.
1940, statesman and Prime Minister (1937—40). Only son
of Joseph Chamberlain (q.v.) by his second wife. Entered
Parliament in 1918; promoted in Baldwin Ministry. As
Prime Minister declared war on Nazi Germany in 1939.
Resigned Premiership in 1940.

The ashes of Dr Eric Symes Abbott, KCVO, b. 1906, d.
1983, Dean of Westminster (1959—74), are close by; Dean
of King’s College, London (1945-55); Chaplain to King
George VI (1948—52) and to Queen Elizabeth II (1952-9);
Warden of Keble College, Oxford (1956—60); Extra-
Chaplain to Queen Elizabeth II from 1974. In 1965-6,
during his time as Dean, the 900th anniversary of the
Abbey’s consecration was celebrated. For this, the theme
of ‘One People’ was adopted and numerous events,
exhibitions, and special services took place. An official
history of the Abbey, entitled A House of Kings, edited by
Canon Edward Carpenter (Dean 1974-85), was also
published. The theme of ‘One People’ introduced by Dean
Abbott, continued to develop under Dean Carpenter. The
900th anniversary also saw the introduction of the
continuing practice of short prayers at every hour when
there is no service taking place, to remind visitors that they
are in a Christian church. Stone cut by M. Harvey.

In this area is buried General William (Blakeney), 1st
Baron Blakeney, KB, b. 1671, d. 1761. A member of a
Norfolk family settled in Co. Limerick, he defended
Stirling Castle against the Jacobites and also Fort St Philip;
made KB and created Baron Blakeney (1756).

North of the Nave Altar are buried two earlier Deans: Dr
Paul Fulcrand Delacour de Labilliere, b. 1879, d. 1946,
Dean of Westminster (1938—46); Suffragan Bishop of
Knaresborough (1934-8). As Dean he took a deep interest
in the history of the Fabric and in the traditions of the
Abbey, and he aimed to enhance its beauty and to increase
the dignity of the services. The placing of an altar once
more in the Nave was due to Dean de Labilliere. During the
Second World War the Dean remained on the spot despite
the fact that in May 1941 much of the Deanery was
destroyed by bombs, and his personal possessions were lost.
He bore both these blows with very great courage. De
Labilliere lived to see peace and that the Abbey Church had
emerged with very little damage. His wife Ester, d. 1954, is
buried with him.

Dr Alan Campbell Don, KCVO, b. 1885, d. 1966, Dean
of Westminster (1946—59), Provost of Dundee Cathedral
(1921-31); Chaplain to Archbishop Lang of Canterbury
(1931-41); Chaplain to King George VI (1937-46); Canon
and Sub-Dean of Westminster, Rector of St Margaret’s
(1941-6). The greatest event of his decanate was the
Coronation of HM the Queen on 2 June 1953, and in that
vear was launched a great appeal for funds to save the
Abbey Fabric. In Dr Don’s time also the Deanery was
restored after bomb-damage and the Nurses’ Memorial
Chapel and the Lower Islip Chapel were fitted up. The
Dean himself gave the window (g.v.) as a thank-offering
for peace and in memory of Abbot John Islip and his own
predecessor Dean de Labilliere. Dr Don, after his

retirement, together with Mr Paul Paget gave the statue of
St Catherine (q.v.) overlooking the Infirmary Chapel in
memory of Lord Mottistone, the architect of the rebuilding
of the Deanery and new residences in the Little Cloister.
The Stalls in the Nave were given by Dr Don in memory of
his wife Muriel Gwenda (née McConnel), d. 1963, also
buried here.

Near by are buried three very great physicists: J. J.
Thomson, Rutherford, and Kelvin.

East of the Altar lies Sir Joseph John Thomson, OM,
PRS, b. 1856, d. 1940, Master of Trinity College,
Cambridge, the discoverer of what we now call ‘electrons’.
This discovery was announced in 1897, and from then
modern atomic physics began. Thomson was awarded the
Nobel Prize for Physics in 1906. Near Thomson is buried
Ernest (Rutherford), 1st Baron Rutherford, OM, PRS,
b. 1871, d. 1937, Cavendish Professor of Experimental
Physics, Cambridge University; Director of the Royal
Society Mond Laboratory, Cambridge; he continued
Thomson’s work on atomic physics, and after much work
on radioactivity moved to the study of the structure of the
atom. He received the Nobel Prize for Chemistry in 1908.
William (Thomson), 1st Baron Kelvin, OM, PRS, b. 1824,
d. 1907, physicist and inventor. He was early involved in
the birth of electrical industry but is perhaps best known
for his work, in combination with Joule, on the laws of
thermodynamics, and for the invention of navigational and
electrical measuring instruments.

To the north of Rutherford and Kelvin in the floor are
metal plates, both redesigned by J. P. Foster and executed
by Messrs Morris Singer in 1976 and given (as replacements
for stone) by the Institution of Civil Engineers to
commemorate: Michael Faraday, b. 1791, d. 1867,
physicist and chemist. With early encouragement from Sir
Humphry Davy, he made, by experiment, careful
investigation in chemistry in the composition of steel and
the making of optical glass, but his greatest achievements
were his studies in electricity and magnetism. Buried at
Highgate Cemetery. Near to Faraday’s metal plaque is one
to James Clerk Maxwell, b. 1831, d. 1879, mathematician
and physicist; Cavendish Professor of Physics, Cambridge
University. Although greatly interested in optics and
colour, Maxwell is probably most celebrated for his
mathematical work on electromagnetic fields, which in turn
led to modern radio-communication.

Against the Choir Screen, to the north of the entrance to
the Choir, is the monument to the man whose burial here
has attracted to him the graves and memorials of these great
scientists:

Sir Isaac Newton, PRS (1705-27), b. 1642, d. 1727,
philosopher and mathematician. Newton is most commenly
known for his conception of the law of universal
gravitation, but his other discoveries and inventions in
mathematics (e.g. the binomial theorem, differential and
integral calculus), optics, mechanics, and astronomy place
him in the very forefront of all scientists. His study and
understanding of light, the invention of the reflecting
telescope (1668), and his revelation in his Principia of the
mathematical ordering of the Universe are all represented
on the monument. It was designed by W. Kent, executed by
J. M. Rysbrack and finished in 1731. Newton’s effigy
loosely clad in Classical costume, reclines on a sarcophagus
with his elbow upon his great works labelled ‘Divinity’,
“Chronology’, ‘Opticks’ (1704) and ‘Philo. Prin. Math.’
(Philosophia Naturalis Principia Mathematica, 1686—7). A
bas-relief shows boys playing with instruments concerning

Monument to Sir Isaac Newton.
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